
 

  
 

Community Safety 
Select Committee 

Agenda 

 
 

 

Date: 
 
Venue: 

Thursday 9 January 2025 at 4.30 pm 
 
Jim Cooke Conference Suite, Stockton Central Library, Church Road, 
Stockton-on-Tees TS18 1TU 

 
 
Cllr Paul Rowling (Chair) 
Cllr Mrs Ann McCoy (Vice-Chair) 
 
Cllr John Coulson Cllr Richard Eglington 
Cllr Jason French Cllr Shakeel Hussain 
Cllr Barbara Inman Cllr Sylvia Walmsley 
Cllr Alan Watson  
 
 

AGENDA 
 
1   Evacuation Procedure 

 
(Pages 7 - 8) 

 
2   Apologies for Absence 

 
 
 

3   Declarations of Interest 
 

 
 

4   Minutes 
 

 

 To approve the minutes of the last meeting held on 28 
November 2024. 
 

(Pages 9 - 16) 
 

5   Scrutiny Review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres 
 

 

 To consider information from the following organisations in 
relation to this scrutiny topic: 
 

• Business Forums / Groups 

• SBC Adults, Health and Wellbeing (to follow) 
 

(Pages 17 - 30) 
 

6   Safer Stockton Partnership (SSP) - Previous Minutes 
(October 2024) 
 

(Pages 31 - 34) 
 

7   Chair's Update and Select Committee Work 
Programme 2024-2025 
 

(Pages 35 - 40) 
 

 

Page 1



  
 

Community Safety 
Select Committee 

Agenda 

 
 

Members of the Public - Rights to Attend Meeting 
 
With the exception of any item identified above as containing exempt or confidential information under the 
Local Government Act 1972 Section 100A(4), members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting 
and/or have access to the agenda papers. 
 
Persons wishing to obtain any further information on this meeting, including the opportunities available   for 
any member of the public to speak at the meeting; or for details of access to the meeting for 
disabled people, please 
 
Contact:      , Senior Scrutiny Officer, Gary Woods on email gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk 

Page 2



  

KEY - Declarable interests are:- 
 
●  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI’s) 
●  Other Registerable Interests (ORI’s) 
●  Non Registerable Interests (NRI’s) 

 
Members – Declaration of Interest Guidance 

 

 

Page 3



  

 

 

Table 1 - Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

Subject Description 

Employment,  
office, trade,  
profession or  
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain 

Sponsorship 

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the council) 
made to the councillor during the previous 12-month period for expenses incurred by 
him/her in carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, or towards his/her election 
expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning 
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts 

Any contract made between the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil partners (or a 
firm in which such person is a partner, or an incorporated body of which such person 
is a director* or  
 
a body that such person has a beneficial interest in the securities of*) and the council 
—  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; 
and  
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land and 
property 

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the council.  
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does 
not give the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the 
councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners (alone or jointly with another) 
a right to occupy or to receive income. 

Licences 
Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer. 

Corporate 
tenancies 

Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s knowledge)—  
(a) the landlord is the council; and  
(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or his/her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners is a 
partner of or a director* of or has a beneficial interest in the securities* of. 

Securities 

Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body where—     
(a) that body (to the councillor’s   knowledge) has a place of business or   land in the 
area of the council; and     
(b) either—     
(i) the total nominal value of the   securities* exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or     
(ii)      if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or civil 
partner or the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil 
partners have a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class. 

* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society. 
 
* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment 
scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any 
description, other than money deposited with a building society.

Page 4



  

 

 

Table 2 – Other Registerable Interest 

You must register as an Other Registrable Interest: 
 
a) any unpaid directorships 
 
b) any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or management and to which 
you are nominated or appointed by your authority  
 
c) any body  
 
(i) exercising functions of a public nature  
 
(ii) directed to charitable purposes or  
 
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political 
party or trade union) of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 

Jim Cooke Conference Suite, Stockton Central Library 
Evacuation Procedure & Housekeeping 
 
If the fire or bomb alarm should sound please exit by the nearest emergency exit. 
The Fire alarm is a continuous ring and the Bomb alarm is the same as the fire 
alarm however it is an intermittent ring.  
 
If the Fire Alarm rings exit through the nearest available emergency exit and form 
up in Municipal Buildings Car Park.   
 
The assembly point for everyone if the Bomb alarm is sounded is the car park at 
the rear of Splash on Church Road.  
 
The emergency exits are located via the doors between the 2 projector screens. 
The key coded emergency exit door will automatically disengage when the alarm 
sounds. 
 
The Toilets are located on the Ground floor corridor of Municipal Buildings next to 
the emergency exit. Both the ladies and gents toilets are located on the right 
hand side. 
 
Microphones 
 
During the meeting, members of the Committee, and officers in attendance, will 
have access to a microphone. Please use the microphones, when directed to 
speak by the Chair, to ensure you are heard by the Committee. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



COMMUNITY SAFETY SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of Community Safety Select Committee was held on Thursday 28 
November 2024. 
 
Present: 
 

Cllr Paul Rowling (Chair), Cllr Mrs Ann McCoy (Vice-Chair), 
Cllr John Coulson, Cllr Shakeel Hussain, Cllr Barbara Inman, 
Cllr Eileen Johnson (sub for Cllr Richard Eglington), 
Cllr Sylvia Walmsley, Cllr Alan Watson, Cllr Sally Ann Watson 
(sub for Cllr Jason French) 
 

Officers: 
 

Dawn Tyerman (A,H&W); Gary Woods (CS) 
 

Also in 
attendance: 
 

Andy Turner (Cleveland Fire Brigade); Cllr Helen Atkinson, 
Dee Smith (Billingham Town Council); Cllr Mark Fairbairn, 
Cllr Phil Genery (Thornaby Town Council) 
 

Apologies: 
 

Cllr Richard Eglington, Cllr Jason French 
 

 
CSS/29/24 Evacuation Procedure 

 
The evacuation procedure was noted. 
 

CSS/30/24 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no interests declared. 
 

CSS/31/24 Minutes 
 
Consideration was given to the minutes of the Community Safety Select Committee 
meeting which was held on 24 October 2024 for approval and signature.  Updates 
were provided on the following items that were on the agenda: 
 

• Scrutiny Review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres: The Committee was yet to 
receive a response from the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) 
for Cleveland regarding the request for additional information on the anticipated 
public scrutiny panel – this would be shared with Members once received. 

 

• Safer Stockton Partnership (SSP) – Previous Minutes (March, May and July 2024): 
As agreed, a letter had been sent to the Chair of the SSP regarding Committee 
concerns around stated truancy levels within the Borough, as well as the issue of 
home schooling and how this was being checked / quality controlled – any 
response would be shared with Members once received. 

 
AGREED that the minutes of the Committee meeting held on 24 October 2024 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

CSS/32/24 Scrutiny Review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres 
 
Cllr Mrs Ann McCoy wished it to be recorded for transparency purposes only that she 
was currently a member of Billingham Town Council as well as a Ward Councillor. 
 

Page 1Page 9

Agenda Item 4



The fourth evidence-gathering session for the Committee’s ongoing review of 
Welcoming and Safe Town Centres considered submissions in relation to this scrutiny 
topic from Cleveland Fire Brigade and Town Councils across Stockton-on-Tees. 
 
CLEVELAND FIRE BRIGADE 
 
Presented by the Cleveland Fire Brigade (CFB) Group Manager / Head of Prevention 
& Engagement, several documents were summarised which covered the following: 
 

• Fire Incidents (Stockton District): Town Centres / High Streets 

• Fire Incidents (Stockton District): Economic Cost of Deliberate Fires 

• Stockton District Station Work (2024) 

• Stockton Community Hub Work (2024) 

• Stockton Community Liaison Officer (CLO) Work (Aug 23 – Oct 24) 

• Commissioned Services Work (2024) 
 
Data on recorded incidences of deliberate primary and secondary fires within the 
Borough’s town centres / high streets was provided for the current 2024-2025 year (up 
to 30 September 2024) as well as the previous five-year period (covering 2019-2020 
to 2023-2024).  Subsequent analysis of this information was noted as follows: 
 

• Billingham Town Centre: Between 7.00pm and 9.00pm was the time where most 
fires occurred, with Thursdays being the most prevalent day for incidents. 

 

• Ingleby Barwick Town Centre: Early evening (6.00pm to 8.00pm) saw the highest 
number of incidents, with Sundays experiencing the most fires since 2019-2020. 

 

• Norton High Street: Wednesday was the most common day for recorded fires, 
though total numbers were low since 2019-2020.  Again, 6.00pm to 8.00pm was 
the time when most incidents took place. 

 

• Stockton Town Centre: Historically, the highest number of fire incidents were 
recorded in this area, with Thursdays being the most frequent day and 6.00pm to 
7.00pm being the most common time. 

 

• Thornaby Town Centre: Like in Norton, Wednesdays saw the most incidents, with 
5.00pm to 6.00pm and 8.00pm to 9.00pm providing the highest number of fires. 

 

• Yarm High Street: Recorded incidents were very low for each of the years since 
2019-2020, with Sundays and Mondays seeing most fires. 

 
Having access to this data enabled CFB to direct its crews to certain parts of the 
Borough at specific times in order to reduce incidents. 
 
Separate analysis on the economic cost of recorded deliberate fires within the 
Borough across the previously completed five years (2019-2020 to 2023-2024) and 
the current 2024-2025 year (up to 30 September 2024) had been compiled.  For the 
six Stockton-on-Tees town centre spaces, it was estimated that the number of 
incidents since April 2019 had cost the local economy around £1.8m (with Stockton 
high street accounting for nearly half of this amount). 
 
A summary of the work undertaken during 2024 by community fire stations across the 
Borough showcased several safety initiatives implemented by CFB – these included 

Page 2Page 10



‘Safer Homes’ visits, operational intelligence / station risk footprint visits, school visits, 
a property risk register, arson audit inspections, community engagement by fire 
stations crews, and Operation Autumnus (bonfire period work with partner agencies).  
Future plans to aid in making town centre spaces more welcoming and safer included 
the development of partnership agreements with other key agencies and strengthened 
arrangements around supporting vulnerable groups. 
 
Stockton Community Hub activity for the 2024 calendar year was then highlighted, 
with data supplied in relation to at risk adult cases, school engagement (including the 
number of pupils involved in these sessions), and individuals identified for fire setter 
intervention (mostly children, though CFB was starting to deal with adults).  In terms of 
the latter, CFB acknowledged that it might not be aware of all individuals who may 
benefit from being involved with the fire setter programme, and urged Members to let 
the Brigade know of anyone it could be engaging with to help minimise future 
incidents.  Other Community Hub work was outlined, including involvement in events, 
meetings with local partners, the use of risk reduction equipment, homelessness 
referrals, and sessions delivered as part of the Borough’s Holidays Are Fun (HAF) 
programme.  Staff walk-arounds in hotspot areas were planned, and it was suggested 
that negative perceptions of town centre spaces could be addressed by the promotion 
of ongoing work (continuing public events, consultations and surveys) and case 
studies of successful prosecutions for key areas of concern that residents had. 
 
An overview of the achievements of the local Community Liaison Officer (CLO) since 
August 2023 demonstrated a range of engagement (including attendance at Stockton 
Tasking and Co-ordination Group (TCG) and Stockton Joint Action Group (JAG) 
meetings) which aided in preventing access to ‘fuel’ (materials that could be burned).  
Again, Members were encouraged to contact CFB if they were aware of any 
properties (e.g. empty / derelict) which may provide a greater risk in terms of fire 
setting. 
 
Finally, safety initiatives involving CFB Commissioned Services during 2024 (up to the 
end of July 2024) were documented, with road safety education in primary schools, 
carbon monoxide awareness sessions, and the issuing of grants to reduce arson all 
highlighted.  Investment in high quality professional youth work was seen as important 
in addressing negative safety perceptions of town centres, along with community 
consultation around what would help make people feel safer (and then acting on this). 
 
Thanking CFB for all the support it provided (with specific reference to the recent work 
in Tilery where officers had put their own safety on the line), the Committee began its 
response to the information presented by asking how many fire incidents had been 
reported at nearby John Whitehead Park, Billingham, and whether the Brigade liaised 
with Cleveland Police when any fire-setting within the park occurred.  CFB confirmed 
that the majority of fire incidents in and around the Billingham town centre space 
happened inside John Whitehead Park (further data could be provided to back this 
up), with CFB requesting that the police attend if the person responsible for setting the 
fire was known / suspected. 
 
Members highlighted the issue of derelict / empty buildings which had the potential to 
attract those intent on setting fires, and queried what powers CFB had to secure such 
premises.  The Committee heard that there was little the Brigade could do in this 
regard, though it was aware of a number of buildings which were considered a 
concern (Members highlighted problems with young people getting into Kensington 
Gardens, Billingham, and setting fire alarms off).  The CFB Community Liaison Officer 

Page 3Page 11



(CLO) role was to draw owners’ attention to any property risks, and it was noted that 
Middlesbrough Council proactively boarded up identified problem buildings and then 
recharged owners. 
 
The Committee questioned if fire incidents in Ingleby Barwick had reduced since the 
removal of the recycling site at Tesco supermarket around five months ago – CFB 
confirmed that there had been a subsequent fall in incidents, though Ingleby Barwick 
was not a significant pressure area for the Brigade.  It was noted that Ingleby Barwick 
Town Council had previously paid for a dedicated enforcement service which was 
operational all week apart from Sundays (the day which had the highest number of 
recorded fire incidents) – this had since changed to an ‘on call basis’ arrangement 
only.  CFB encouraged partners to inform them of any relevant officers who may need 
to be contacted in the event of a fire. 
 
CFBs relationship with local partners (including SBC) was probed, with Members 
being assured that this was strong and that the Brigade attended the same meetings 
as the police. 
 
For those incidents where there was a reasonable idea of who had caused them, the 
Committee asked what was being done to track down the culprits once the fire had 
been put out (as the public perception was often that nothing happened).  In response, 
Members were told that CFB considered every deliberate fire a crime, however, the 
police did not see it this way.  Every CFB officer wore body-worn cameras (prompted 
to a large degree by physical / verbal abuse they received) which had the potential to 
aid identification of those responsible for fire-setting, and the Brigade actively pushed 
for an arrest if it had evidence.  CFB requested that its CLO be made aware of 
suspects so individuals can be reported to the police. 
 
Referencing ongoing efforts to regenerate the Borough’s town centre spaces, attention 
turned to concerns around the prevalence of rubbish bags around takeaways which 
had the potential to present fire-setting opportunities, with the Committee querying 
what work was being done with businesses to reduce risks.  Members were informed 
that the Brigade’s Fire Engineering Department was responsible for this and had a 
business premises inspection programme in place (on a five-year cycle) which 
involved discussions with the ‘responsible person’ for a property.  A particular area of 
concern had been identified in relation to flats above Chinese restaurants, though 
these were not generally located within town centre areas.  Again, CFB encouraged 
the sharing of any information on specific premises which may present risks. 
 
The final question focused on youths involved in fire-setting and the extent to which 
CFB educated young people to minimise future incidents.  CFB gave assurance that 
once individuals engaged in fire-setting were identified, education officers visited 
schools (mainly primary) to conduct 1:1 intervention (though it was noted that those 
starting fires in town centres often did not live in these locations).  Multi-agency ‘Silver 
Recovery Groups’ also existed in both Hartlepool and Middlesbrough which enabled 
information-sharing around known / suspected fire-setters. 
 
TOWN COUNCILS 
 
The Committee was keen to receive input from the Borough’s Town Councils 
(Billingham, Ingleby Barwick, Thornaby, and Yarm) on this scrutiny review topic and 
had therefore made an approach to seek information / views.  All four Town Councils 
were either represented at the meeting and / or provided a written submission for 

Page 4Page 12



consideration – key elements, as well as any subsequent discussion, was recorded as 
follows: 
 

• Billingham Town Council: The Chair of the Town Council, accompanied by the 
Town Clerk, was in attendance to summarise its response.  The main issue for 
Billingham town centre was anti-social behaviour (ASB) and vandalism from 
younger people (another issue was shoplifting, however, because this happened in 
the shops, this did not directly affect the people walking through the centre).  The 
Town Council did not address these issues – if anything was reported, it passed 
the information over to the town centre management. 

 
Residents had expressed concerns that the town centre felt unwelcoming and 
lacked safety, with a general perception of it being dull and grey.  There was a 
strong desire for a greater variety of shops, including independent retailers who 
could offer a unique shopping experience (distinct from typical high street 
offerings) to attract out-of-town visitors.  Residents would also like an improvement 
to the quality of the buildings, making the town centre more visually appealing, and 
advocated for re-instating the flats above the shops to increase activity in the area.  
More of a leisure offer to boost night-time / weekend activity would be welcomed 
(especially with having the Forum next to the site), as would no charges for car 
parking (encouraging visitors and boosting business).  Local people were, 
however, against the re-development of the existing town centre site for housing 
(reflected in the recent responses to an SBC consultation). 

 
Future priorities to make Billingham town centre as welcoming and safe as 
possible should include extra security presence (especially during evenings), good 
lighting (which needs to be extended to John Whitehead Park), an enhanced 
leisure offer (e.g. places for people to eat in the evening to increase the night-time 
economy and complement existing offers like the Forum theatre), and making the 
town centre more visually appealing.  Creating a busier town centre could possibly 
mean less ASB as more people were around to deter potential offenders. 

 
Reflecting on the identified need for better and more varied shop provision, the 
Committee highlighted the pop-up shop initiative in Yarm which could be an idea for 
Billingham.  The successful enterprise arcade concept (providing short-term flexible 
low-cost retail space) in Stockton was also noted, with Members recognising the clear 
call for a diversified business offer within the Billingham town centre area. 
 
The Committee asked if the Town Council thought it was being consulted enough on 
future thoughts / plans around Billingham town centre developments and whether it 
felt that SBC was listening.  In response, it was stated that whilst existing Town 
Council membership included five SBC Ward Councillors (who were invited to give 
updates on what was happening in their individual wards), much information was 
sourced via social media.  The town centre manager was sometimes not aware of 
developments – this made the Town Council look inefficient. 
 
Reluctance around plans for town centre housing proposals was followed-up, with 
Members suggesting that authorities needed to make it clear to local people how this 
would positively contribute to the end ‘goal’ for Billingham as a place to live and visit.  
In answer to a query on why there was such objection, concerns around who would be 
living in these properties were relayed. 
 

Page 5Page 13



Exploring the increasing prevalence of shoplifting (also highlighted at the previous 
Committee meeting in October 2024), Members emphasised the benefits of a visible 
policing deterrent and felt inaction around this issue would be off-putting for potential 
new businesses (USA-style ‘mall police’, where premises provided funding for shared 
security arrangements, was noted).  The Town Council agreed that any future plans 
were dependent on the town centre space being secure. 
 
Discussions concluded with broad acknowledgement of the change in how people 
looked at town centres and how shopping habits had altered (increase in out-of-town 
provision and online options).  However, the desire for a greater variety of shops was 
re-iterated, with the existing Forum possibly offering the creation of a leisure focus.  
The importance of building décor in promoting a stronger sense of a welcoming town 
centre space was also stressed. 
 
The Committee thanked the Billingham Town Council representatives for their input 
and praised the passion used to put across their points.  Mindful of the issues raised 
as part of this debate, the Chair suggested that he was considering writing to the 
relevant SBC Cabinet Member to inform them of this discussion. 
 

• Ingleby Barwick Town Council: A written submission was considered which began 
by stating that Ingleby Barwick town centre was very different from the town 
centres in Billingham, Thornaby and Yarm in that it was spread out and not 
localised.  In addition to the Tesco Supermarket and Myton Shops, it also 
consisted of shopping parades at Lowfields, Beckfields and Sandgate.  Town 
Centre crime had been identified as being minimal by the SBC Community Safety 
Team whom the Town Council had an excellent working relationship with (and had 
done for several years). 

 
Almost a third of the Town Council precept was spent on SBC Community Safety 
for the use of enforcement, CCTV and monitoring.  There had in the past been 
small pockets of ASB and, more recently, the use of electric bikes and scooters – 
the Town Council strongly advised the public to report any aspect of these 
behaviours to the Civic Enforcement Team.  Communication from local residents 
was low with regards to town centre safety – the main gripe was the lack of 
Christmas decorations in comparison to other town centres. 

 
Noting that social media adversely distorted the reality of what was going on across 
the Borough, Members representing one of the Ingleby Barwick wards expressed their 
understanding that other areas of Stockton-on-Tees experiencing more challenging 
issues received priority in terms of resource allocation.  Regarding Christmas 
decorations, the Town Council had a precept to use for these, but an issue with SBC 
meant there were difficulties in purchasing items. 
 
The Committee also urged a look into prohibitive rent / rates which affected 
businesses across the Borough.  Encouraging more service businesses in addition to 
the retail offer was advocated. 
 

• Thornaby Town Council: Two Town Councillors were in attendance and spoke 
about the importance of perceptions when it came to the sense of a location being 
/ feeling welcoming and safe.  Referencing previous missed opportunities to have a 
more robust police presence within the town centre space, as well as the impact of 
social media in spreading misinformation, the change in shopping habits meant 
that the focus should now be on providing opportunities for products and services 

Page 6Page 14



that people could not obtain online.  Towns needed to consider what their unique 
selling point was in order to attract footfall – leisure and other niche activities 
offered potential, but prohibitive business rates meant premises could soon close 
and / or relocate. 

 
Acknowledging the historic planning issues which had impacted Thornaby, the 
Committee asked what the Town Councillors’ perception of their town centre was – 
representatives responded positively, though expressed uncertainty (and a sense of 
powerlessness) around what would be replacing the former Golden Eagle hotel.  
Members stated that the town centre owners would decide the future of this site 
following a period of consultation, though it was envisaged that the space would likely 
have a family orientation. 
 

• Yarm Town Council: A written submission had been received and was shared with 
the Committee.  Main issues regarding town centre safety in Yarm that were 
regularly reported by residents and visitors were bouts of shoplifters targeting 
certain shops, extensive cycling on pavements, dog fouling, insufficient resources 
for high street cleansing, motorcycle parking provision, cluttered pavements, and 
problems with large trade waste bins. 

 
Relationships between the Town Council and SBC were generally positive, though 
there had been rare but notable instances where some requests or the parish 
position were made to feel inferior.  In terms of future priorities in making Yarm 
town centre as welcoming and safe as possible, tackling ASB problems at a 
nearby playing field, providing more town centre parking, improving parking and 
public toilet signage, ensuring good floral displays and refurbishing street benches, 
and the addition of historic reference points and markers were highlighted. 

 
SBC WARD COUNCILLOR SURVEY 
 
As part of the scoping phase for this review, the Committee identified the need to 
provide an opportunity for SBC Elected Members to give their views on this scrutiny 
topic.  A list of proposed questions was therefore shared and subsequently agreed by 
Members – these would be circulated to all Ward Councillors via the Council’s ‘My 
Views’ survey platform in early-December 2024, with a summary of responses 
received fed back to the Committee in the new year. 
 
AGREED that the information provided by Cleveland Fire Brigade and the Borough’s 
Town Councils be noted. 
 

CSS/33/24 Stockton Home Safety Association - Previous Minutes (March and June 2024) 
 
Cllr Mrs Ann McCoy wished it to be recorded for transparency purposes only that she 
was currently the Chair of the Stockton Home Safety Association. 
 
Consideration was given to the minutes of previous Stockton Home Safety Association 
meetings which took place in March 2024 and June 2024. 
 
AGREED that the minutes of Stockton Home Safety Association meetings which took 
place in March 2024 and June 2024 be noted. 
 
 
 

Page 7Page 15



CSS/34/24 Chair's Update and Select Committee Work Programme 2024-2025 
 
CHAIR’S UPDATE 
 
The Chair confirmed the re-scheduling of the cancelled Committee meeting that was 
originally planned for 19 December 2024 – this would now take place on 9 January 
2025. 
 
WORK PROGRAMME 2024-2025 
 
Consideration was given to the Committee’s current work programme (2024-2025).  
As already noted, the next meeting was due to take place on 9 January 2025 where 
evidence-gathering for the ongoing review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres 
would continue, with a focus on business forums / groups (initial feedback from the 
SBC Ward Councillor survey may also be relayed if available). 
 
In other matters, Members were reminded that an update on progress of outstanding 
actions in relation to the Committee’s previously completed review of Tree Asset 
Management was due in early-2025 – relevant officers would be contacted shortly to 
identify an appropriate meeting date where this would be presented. 
 
AGREED that the Chair’s Update and Community Safety Select Committee Work 
Programme 2024-2025 be noted. 
 

Page 8Page 16



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Community Safety Select Committee 
 

9 January 2025 

 
 

SCRUTINY REVIEW OF WELCOMING AND SAFE TOWN CENTRES 
 
 

Summary 
 

The fifth evidence-gathering session for the Committee’s review of Welcoming and Safe Town 
Centres will consider views on this scrutiny topic from local business forums / groups, as well as 
further information from the Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council (SBC) Adults, Health and 
Wellbeing directorate. 
 
 

Detail 
 

1. The Committee identified the Borough’s business forums / groups as important contributors to 
its ongoing review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres, and therefore approached the lead 
representatives of established entities in Norton, Stockton and Yarm to seek responses to the 
following: 

 

• From your group’s perspective, what are the main issues regarding your local town 
centre’s safety, and what feedback is being received from businesses in terms of the town 
centre environment (from a ‘welcoming’ and ‘safe’ point of view)? 

• What is your group’s relationship with SBC like – is this enabling / inhibiting progress on 
making your local town centre more welcoming / safe? 

• Are you aware of any funding which you can access to support town centre safety?  Have 
you tried to access funding – if successful, what has this been used for? 

• What should be the future priorities in making your local town centre as welcoming and 
safe as possible?  Could your group / local businesses assist with any of these? 

 
Received submissions are included within these meeting papers. 

 

2. Examples of business group / business improvement district (BID) involvement in 
considerations around town centre promotion / safety across the UK can be found via the 
following links: 

 

• Blackburn: https://blackburnbid.co.uk/ 

• Bournemouth: https://towncentrebid.co.uk/our-projects/welcoming/ 

• Harrogate: https://harrogatebid.co.uk/harrogate-hosts-here-to-welcome-town-centre-
visitors/ 

• Tunbridge Wells: https://www.twstp.co.uk/about-us 

• Wolverhampton: https://enjoywolverhampton.com/bid/a-clean-safe-and-welcoming-city 

• Worthing: https://worthingtowncentre.co.uk/business-improvement-district/a-safe-and-
welcoming-town-centre/ 

 
3. Details of efforts to counter retail crime which involve businesses can also be found at 

https://brc.org.uk/nrcsg-against-shop-worker-abuse-and-violence/partnership-working/section-
1-business-crime-reduction-partnerships/.  The ‘Safer Spaces’ initiative (also known as 
Operation Portum) is an overarching scheme that businesses can sign up to and support with 
the objective to collectively increase safe spaces in retail premises (for further details, see 
https://nbcc.police.uk/partnerships/safe-spaces). 

 
 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5

https://blackburnbid.co.uk/
https://towncentrebid.co.uk/our-projects/welcoming/
https://harrogatebid.co.uk/harrogate-hosts-here-to-welcome-town-centre-visitors/
https://harrogatebid.co.uk/harrogate-hosts-here-to-welcome-town-centre-visitors/
https://www.twstp.co.uk/about-us
https://enjoywolverhampton.com/bid/a-clean-safe-and-welcoming-city
https://worthingtowncentre.co.uk/business-improvement-district/a-safe-and-welcoming-town-centre/
https://worthingtowncentre.co.uk/business-improvement-district/a-safe-and-welcoming-town-centre/
https://brc.org.uk/nrcsg-against-shop-worker-abuse-and-violence/partnership-working/section-1-business-crime-reduction-partnerships/
https://brc.org.uk/nrcsg-against-shop-worker-abuse-and-violence/partnership-working/section-1-business-crime-reduction-partnerships/
https://nbcc.police.uk/partnerships/safe-spaces


 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

4. The Committee has previously been made aware of work undertaken to make the Borough’s 
town centres more welcoming for those with dementia and their families / carers.  
Representatives from the SBC Adults, Health and Wellbeing directorate are scheduled to be in 
attendance to provide further information – a submission is being prepared and will be shared 
once finalised. 

 
5. In advance of the session, Members are again reminded of the link to the latest Town Centre-

related developments which can be accessed via https://www.stockton.gov.uk/regeneration. 
 

6. A copy of the agreed scope and plan for this review is included for information. 
 

 
Name of Contact Officer: Gary Woods 
Post Title: Senior Scrutiny Officer 
Telephone No: 01642 526187 
Email Address: gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk 

Page 18

https://www.stockton.gov.uk/regeneration
mailto:gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk


Stockton Business Improvement District (BID) Report 
Presented to the Community Safety Select Committee 
Date: January 9, 2025 
Subject: Welcoming and Safe Stockton Town Centre 
 
 
A Safe and Welcoming Stockton Town Centre 
 
At Stockton BID, part of our mission is to make the town centre a space where everyone feels 
safe, welcomed, and inspired to visit. Over the past year, we’ve worked tirelessly with 
businesses, community members, and the local council to achieve this goal. In this report, we 
reflect on the current challenges and share the progress we’ve made in creating a vibrant, 
thriving Stockton town centre. 
 
 
The Challenges We Face 
 
Anti-Social Behaviour and Safety Concerns 
 
Reports of anti-social behaviour, theft, and public nuisance remain persistent issues in 
Stockton town centre. Businesses frequently share concerns about individuals living with 
addiction using public spaces inappropriately, leaving needles, and engaging in disruptive 
behaviour. These incidents negatively impact public perception, creating a sense of unease for 
visitors and affecting footfall. 
 
In 2024 alone, we recorded 651 incidents, including shoplifting and theft, with hotspots such as 
Wellington Square seeing repeated high-value losses. Violence, though less frequent, remains a 
concern, with 2.92% of incidents involving physical assaults on staff. These issues directly 
affect the morale of business owners and employees, further compounding the challenge of 
creating a welcoming environment. 
 
 
Our Initiatives to Address Safety 
 
Enforcement Officers 
 
Our enforcement officers play a critical role in maintaining order and cleanliness within the 
town centre. Despite facing significant adversity, they work tirelessly to address anti-social 
behaviour, littering, fly-tipping, and the ongoing challenge of illegal parking, particularly around 
Dovecote Street. Their efforts are vital in creating a safer, more organised environment for 
visitors and businesses alike. 
 
Business Crime Reduction Partnership (BCRP) 
 
We’ve made significant strides through the introduction of the Business Crime Reduction 
Partnership (BCRP). By implementing the Sentrysis reporting system, we’ve enabled businesses 
to efficiently log incidents, creating a centralized approach to tackling crime. Additionally, over 
20 radios have been distributed to businesses, improving communication and real-time 
response to issues. To support night-time economy businesses, we’ve funded their 
membership to the Shop Watch scheme, ensuring they have the tools they need to operate 
safely. 

Page 19



Collaborative Efforts to Tackle ASB 
 
Initially, the rollout of the Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) brought a noticeable 
improvement, but long-term solutions are essential. We emphasise compassionate 
approaches to addressing addiction-related behaviours, advocating for strategies that go 
beyond enforcement and work towards integration and support. 
 
Street Angels Initiative 
 
In partnership with funding from the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC), Stockton BID 
launched the Street Angels initiative. This program provides on-the-ground support to 
individuals in the town centre, enhancing safety while fostering a sense of community care. The 
Street Angels not only assist in immediate safety concerns but also act as a welcoming 
presence for visitors. 
 
 
Insights from the Sentrysis Report 
 
• Total Incidents (2024): 651, covering a range of issues including theft (121 shoplifting 

incidents), anti-social behaviour, and aggressive behaviour. 
• Police Involvement: Only 3.1% of incidents involved police intervention, highlighting the 

burden placed on businesses and local systems. 
Offender Profiles 

• 332 offenders were added to the database in 2024, with 223 identified as male and 93 as 
female. 

• A significant proportion of offenders remain of unknown age, indicating gaps in profiling and 
potential challenges in targeted interventions. 

• Seasonal Trends: Peaks in incidents occurred between March and May, with the highest 
monthly total of 140 in May. 

• Economic Impact: Businesses experienced over £10,000 in losses due to unrecovered 
thefts. 

• Hotspots: Wellington Square remains a focal point for safety concerns, accounting for the 
majority of high-value theft and aggressive behaviour reports. 

• The system can be further enhanced by Police allowing integration into their own systems 
meaning reports can immediately be turned in crime reports meaning only needing to report 
an incident once as in other areas such as Durham where this hads been rolled out 
successfully. 

 
 
Positive Developments in Stockton Town Centre 
 
While challenges persist, Stockton Town Centre continues to thrive in many areas: 
 
• Business Growth: Independent businesses remain a cornerstone of the town’s economy, 

with many showing consistent growth and success. Their unique offerings enhance the 
town’s appeal and create a sense of community pride. 

• Events and Festivals: The town regularly hosts vibrant events and festivals that bring colour, 
art, and culture to Stockton. These events not only boost footfall but also foster a sense of 
community and celebration. 

• Regeneration Projects: The ongoing regeneration work is transforming the town centre, 
making it an even more attractive and functional space for visitors, businesses, and 

Page 20



residents alike. These projects demonstrate a commitment to Stockton’s future and its role 
as a thriving hub of activity. 

 
 
Working with Stockton Borough Council 
 
We are proud of our collaborative relationship with Stockton Borough Council. Together, we’ve 
implemented critical safety measures such as enhanced CCTV coverage and enforcement 
actions. However, challenges remain, particularly around resource limitations and securing 
funding to tackle systemic issues like addiction and negative public perception. 
 
 
Looking Ahead: Our Recommendations 
 
To create a truly welcoming and safe Stockton town centre, we propose the following actions: 
 
1. Expand Crime Prevention Efforts: 

• Increase engagement resources and provide additional training for businesses to 
address safety concerns. 
 

2. Promote Compassionate Solutions: 
• Advocate for respectful language and policies surrounding individuals living with 

addiction. 
• Partner with MPs and social organizations to develop inclusive support systems. 
• Challenge local MPs to lead efforts in changing public language about addiction, like the 

positive changes in how society now addresses racism, sexism, and the LGBTQ+ 
community. This shift can foster public compassion, dispel false narratives, and 
encourage constructive conversations about addiction. 
 

3. Boost Public Perception: 
• Launch a public awareness campaign showcasing Stockton’s progress and successes. 
• Highlight the town’s thriving independent businesses, cultural events, and regeneration 

efforts to create a balanced narrative. 
 

4. Secure Strategic Funding: 
• Collaborate with SBC and external partners to identify funding opportunities for safety 

initiatives and community engagement. 
 
 
Conclusion 
 
Stockton BID is unwavering in its dedication to creating a safe and welcoming town center. 
Through collaboration with Stockton Borough Council, local businesses, and community 
stakeholders, we aim to overcome challenges and transform Stockton into a thriving hub for 
commerce and culture. With ongoing focus and investment, we can achieve a town center that 
attracts visitors, inspires residents, and supports a thriving local economy. 
Thank you for the opportunity to present this report. We look forward to continuing our 
partnership to make Stockton Town Centre the best it can be. 
 
 
Prepared by: Jason Maxwell, Stockton BID Manager 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Scrutiny Review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres 

Yarm Business Forum 

 

• From Yarm Business Forum’s perspective, what are the main issues regarding Yarm 
town centre safety, and what feedback is being received from businesses in terms of 
the Yarm town centre environment (from a ‘welcoming’ and ‘safe’ point of view) 

 

To make the town more welcoming and easier to visit: 

a) Shoplifting - Although worse elsewhere, it is still an issue in Yarm.  Would like 
more visibility of enforcement and / or PCSOs during daytime to deter shoplifting 
and begging (even if the officers are just coming to get a coffee!). 
 

b) Need signs on A19: Poor signage to Yarm from main roads - A19.  No signs to 
Yarm at Southbound A19 exit.  Would like 'brown tourist signs. 
 

c) Better and clearer signage for long stay car parks and parking on entry to High 
Street. 
 

d) Better information for local amenities - do we need a central visitors website with 
page for each borough town funded by SBC, or option for funding by SBC for 'Visit 
Yarm' information. 
 

e) More and clearer information for businesses and residents regarding begging and 
homeless issues and action plans.  Could be on website.  Contact numbers for 
enforcement, etc. 
 

f) More and clearer information for businesses (and residents) on mess and 
littering - Care for your area contact.  Who to contact, etc.  Ideally, 'Care for your 
area' should be monitoring litter and mess on side streets like central street. 
 

g) Car park payment machines need sorting.  Out of use too often creating worry 
and stress for visitors. 
 

h) Better floral displays - hanging baskets - YTC reduced funding this year and 
halved number of baskets. 

 

Page 23



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

• What is Yarm Business Forum’s relationship with SBC like – is this enabling / 
inhibiting progress on making Yarm town centre more welcoming / safe (please 
provide any examples)? 

 

I would say the relationship with SBC is good particularly through High Street 
representative - Sara.  However, I would say that communication with SBC as a 
whole has reduced in the last 18 months (with the exception of Sara) and could be 
improved.  There has been no update on High Street improvement project, no 
consultation on parking charges.  I think an annual meeting with the whole High 
Street team at Stockton should be a minimum. 

 

 

• Are you aware of any funding which you can access to support town centre 
safety?  Have you tried to access funding – if successful, what has this been used 
for? 

 

Not aware of any funding. 

 

 

• What should be the future priorities in making Yarm town centre as welcoming and 
safe as possible?  Could your Forum / local businesses assist with any of these? 

 

a) Bins. Removal of unsightly and unsafe bins on side streets - Central Street in 
particular.  End up daily with loose and unsightly waste, broken glass on major 
thoroughfare for cars and pedestrians.  Attracts vermin and is used as toilet on 
weekend nights. 
 

b) More regular PCSO and enforcement visibility and visits during daytime. 
 

c) Car parking machines. 
 

d) Car parking signage. 

 

Page 24



 

1 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Community Safety Select Committee 
 

Review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres 
 

Outline Scope 
 

  
Scrutiny Chair (Project Director): 
Cllr Paul Rowling 

Contact details: 
paul.rowling@stockton.gov.uk 
 

Scrutiny Officer (Project Manager): 
Gary Woods 
 

Contact details: 
gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk 
01642 526187 
 

Departmental Link Officer: 
Sharon Cooney 
(SBC Head of Community Safety) 
 

Contact details: 
sharon.cooney@stockton.gov.uk 
 
 

Which of our strategic corporate objectives does this topic address?  
 
The review will contribute to all three of the Council Plan 2023-2026 key objectives: 
 

• A place where people are healthy, safe and protected from harm 

• A place with a thriving economy where everyone has opportunities to succeed 

• A place that is clean, vibrant and attractive 
 

What are the main issues and overall aim of this review? 
 
For several years now, debate has ensued over the future purpose and provision of town centres 
across the UK, with Local Authorities and their numerous partners considering the ways in which 
they can make these locations as appealing as possible within the context of a tough financial 
landscape.  In related matters, the issue of town centre safety has drawn recent national 
attention, with significant concerns raised around reported increases in shoplifting, rising 
incidences of violence and abuse of shop staff, and police / community support officer numbers 
(UK Parliament - Town Centre Safety (Dec 23)). 
 
As Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council (SBC) progresses with the redevelopment of its six town 
centres, fostering feelings of safety and creating welcoming spaces are crucial for several 
reasons.  A safe environment encourages residents and visitors to engage in activities, boosting 
economic vitality through increased footfall and business opportunities.  A welcoming town 
centre also promotes community cohesion and pride, attracting investment but also encouraging 
a sense of belonging amongst residents.  Cultivating and developing a positive perception of the 
Borough’s town centres is an essential component of the Council’s regeneration strategy. 
 
Over recent years, a significant amount of work has gone into supporting Stockton-on-Tees town 
centres, both from a regeneration investment perspective and a community safety standpoint.  A 
substantial amount of investment has been made in community safety measures such as new 
CCTV cameras and the provision of additional Civic Enforcement Officers to patrol and work with 
key stakeholders to problem-solve issues.  Furthermore, last year saw the introduction of the 
Council’s first Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) to tackle aggressive begging and street 
drinking in both Stockton Town Centre and Norton Village. 
 

Page 25

mailto:paul.rowling@stockton.gov.uk
mailto:gary.woods@stockton.gov.uk
mailto:sharon.cooney@stockton.gov.uk
https://hansard.parliament.uk/commons/2023-12-05/debates/883E0B06-DF62-446B-BB22-2F36C0F9D222/TownCentreSafety


 

2 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

These measures, alongside additional support from SBCs strategic partners, have resulted in 
sustained reductions in key areas of crime and disorder.  Despite this, however, the public 
perception of town centre safety continues to be poor amongst prospective visitors and also 
commercial investors. 
 
This review provides an opportunity to scrutinise what is currently in place in terms of promoting 
safety in town centres and how effective the measures are in addressing crime and disorder, 
whilst also further exploring what more can be done to positively promote the Borough’s town 
centre spaces to address negative perceptions and improve feelings of safety. 
 
The main aims for this review will be to: 

• Establish the key issues within each of the Borough’s six town centres with regards safety. 

• Understand the measures already in place to address these issues and ascertain any gaps 
in future plans. 

• Identify any potential learning from other parts of the UK. 
 

The Committee will undertake the following key lines of enquiry: 
 
What is meant by the term ‘welcoming’ in relation to the Borough’s town centres? 
 
What has the Council and its partners done to make its town centres more welcoming and safer 
(inc. impact of recent PSPO implementation)?  How effective have these been? 
 
What safety issues (real or perceived) are specific to the six town centres across the Borough; 
what is stopping residents / visitors wanting to access these locations?  What data is available to 
support / contradict these concerns? 
 
Do town centre businesses consider their location as welcoming and safe?  What issues, if any, 
do they feel need addressing; could they assist with any of these themselves? 
 
How is the grant funding allocated to the Cleveland PCC area as part of the latest Safer Streets 
Fund (round five) being used to improve safety within the Borough? 
 
What is the role of the Stockton Safety Partnership (SSP) in relation to this scrutiny topic? 
 
How can this review contribute to / complement the ongoing SBC Powering Our Future 
Community Safety and Regulated Services project? 
 
How does / can the Council utilise the local voluntary, community and social enterprise (VCSE) 
sector to support welcoming and safe town centres? 
 
What can the Council learn from the approach of other Local Authorities? 
 

Who will the Committee be trying to influence as part of its work? 
 
Council, Cabinet, SBC partners, businesses, public. 
 

Expected duration of review and key milestones: 
 
8 months (report to Cabinet in April 2025) 
 

  

Page 26



 

3 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

What information do we need? 
 
Existing information (background information, existing reports, legislation, central government 
documents, etc.): 
 

• Local Government Association (LGA): Revitalising town centres (May 18) 

• Safer Stockton Partnership (SSP): Stockton-on-Tees Community Safety Strategy 2022-2025  

• GOV.UK: Safer Streets Fund (Oct 23) 
 

 
Who can provide us with further relevant 
evidence? (Cabinet Member, officer, service 
user, general public, expert witness, etc.) 
 
Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council 

• Community Safety and 
Regulated Services 

 
 

• Public Health 
 
 

• Town Centres Development 

• Inclusive Growth and Development 
 

• Ward Councillors 
 
Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Cleveland 
 
Cleveland Police 
Cleveland Fire Authority / Brigade 
 
 
Town Councils 
Business Forums / Groups 
 
 
Catalyst / VCSE Sector 
 
 
Residents / Communities 
 
Other Local Authority Areas 
 

What specific areas do we want them to cover 
when they give evidence?  
 
 

 
➢ Issues being highlighted for each town centre 
➢ Safety initiatives implemented and the impact 
➢ Role of SSP in this scrutiny topic 
 
➢ Influencing community safety / violence 

prevention 
 
➢ Plans for / progress on town centre investment 

and making these spaces welcoming / safe 
 
➢ Feedback from public 
 
➢ Town centre priorities / plans 
➢ Safer Streets Fund – impact within Borough 
 
➢ Town centre crime / disorder data 
➢ Safety initiatives implemented and the impact 
➢ Past / future partnership-working with SBC 
 
➢ Issues regarding town centre safety and 

measures taken to address these 
➢ Past / future partnership-working with SBC 
 
➢ Existing VCSE involvement 
➢ How the VCSE could further support efforts 
 
➢ Views on / barriers to accessing town centres 
 
➢ Initiatives to improve views of town centres 

and / or tackle negative perceptions 
 

How will this information be gathered? (eg. financial baselining and analysis, 
benchmarking, site visits, face-to-face questioning, telephone survey, survey) 
 
Committee meetings, reports, research, existing public feedback, site visits (TBC). 
 

  

Page 27



 

4 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

How will key partners and the public be involved in the review? 
 
Committee meetings, information submissions. 
 

How will the review help the Council meet the Public Sector Equality Duty?       
 
The Public Sector Equality Duty requires that public bodies have due regard to the need to 
advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between different people when 
carrying out their activities.  This review will be mindful of these factors. 
 

How will the review contribute towards the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, or the 
implementation of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy? 
 
Stockton Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA): Crime: Crime and the fear of crime are key 
factors that affect people’s quality of life and sense of wellbeing. 
 
Stockton-on-Tees Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2019-2023: All people in Stockton-on-
Tees live in healthy places and sustainable communities: Health and wellbeing are influenced by 
the environment in which people grow up, live, work and spend their leisure time and by how 
safe people feel in their communities. 
 

Provide an initial view as to how this review could lead to efficiencies, improvements 
and/or transformation: 
 
An assessment of the effectiveness of local community safety measures and recommendations 
on what more could potentially be done to address public concerns (whether real or perceived). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 

5 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Project Plan 
 

 

Key Task Details/Activities Date Responsibility 

Scoping of Review 
 

Information gathering 
 

May 2024 
 

Scrutiny Officer 
Link Officer 
 

Tri-Partite Meeting 
 

Meeting to discuss aims 
and objectives of review 

29.05.24 Select Committee Chair and 
Vice Chair, Cabinet 
Member(s), Director(s), 
Scrutiny Officer, Link Officer 
 

Agree Project Plan 
 

Scope and Project Plan 
agreed by Committee 
 

13.06.24 Select Committee 

Publicity of Review 
 

Determine whether 
Communications Plan 
needed 
 

TBC Link Officer, Scrutiny Officer 

Obtaining Evidence 
 
 
 
 

SBC Community Safety 
and Regulated Services 
 
SBC Town Centres Dev. 
SBC Public Health / CGL 
 
Office of the PCC 
Cleveland Police 
 
Cleveland Fire Brigade 
Town Councils 
 
Business Forums / Groups 
Ward Councillor Survey 
 
Catalyst / VCSE Sector 
Other Local Authorities 
 

11.07.24 
 
 

26.09.24 
 
 

24.10.24 
 
 

28.11.24 
 
 

09.01.25 
 
 

23.01.25 

Select Committee 
 

Members decide 
recommendations 
and findings 
 

Review summary of 
findings and formulate draft 
recommendations 

27.02.25 Select Committee 

Circulate Draft 
Report to 
Stakeholders 
 

Circulation of Report March 2025 Scrutiny Officer 

Tri-Partite Meeting 
 

Meeting to discuss findings 
of review and draft 
recommendations 

TBC Select Committee Chair and 
Vice Chair, Cabinet 
Member(s), Director(s), 
Scrutiny Officer, Link Officer 
 

Final Agreement of 
Report 
 

Approval of final report by 
Committee 

27.03.25 Select Committee, Cabinet 
Member, Director 

Consideration of 
Report by Executive 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

Consideration of report [20.05.25] Executive Scrutiny 
Committee 

Page 29



 

6 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Report to Cabinet / 
Approving Body 
 

Presentation of final report 
with recommendations for 
approval to Cabinet 
 

17.04.25 Cabinet / Approving Body 

 

Page 30



SAFER STOCKTON PARTNERSHIP 
 
A meeting of Safer Stockton Partnership was held on Wednesday 2 October 2024. 
 
Present: 
 

John Wrintmore (Chair), Sharon Cooney, Libby Griffiths, Cllr Steve 
Nelson, Dawn Tyeman, Key Nicolson, Mandy Mackinnon, Leanne 
Melony-Kelly, Vanessa  Housley, Mandie Rowlands, Anna 
Waddington, Marc Stephenson, Gary Knight, Sarah Wilson, Cllr 
Pauline Beall, Matt Storey, Stu Hodgson, Lucy Owens, Dan Heron, 
Richard Brown, Majella McCarthy . 
 

Officers: 
 

John Devine. 
 

Also in 
attendance: 
 

  

Apologies: 
 

Cllr Norma Stephenson, Ann Powell, David Willingham . 
 

 
SSP/2524 Evacuation Procedure 

 
The Evacuation Procedure was noted  
 

SSP/2624 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no Declarations of Interest. 
 

SSP/2724 Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the previous meeting held on the 17th July 2024 were agreed as a true 
record. 
 

SSP/2824 Knife Crime Prevention 
 
Representatives of Cleveland Police presented a report on Knife Crime Prevention to 
members. Officers highlighted several sections of the report to Members.  

Since Sept 2023 there had been 810 crimes involving a knife or a bladed article in the 
Cleveland area, this amounted to a 10% decrease from the year previous. Members 
were also informed that more than half of all identified suspects linked to knife crime 
were males under the age of 24. During the same 12-month period 186 people aged 
24 and under were victims of knife crime. Officers added that knife crime makes up 
57% of all serious violence in Cleveland.   

The report also gave a more focused look at the Stockon Borough in relation to knife 
crime, which showed that there had been 213 knife crime offences in the last 12 
months in Stockton. This was a 23% reduction from the previous 12-month period.  

Police set out their plans on how to reduce knife crime further, with early interventions 
schemes, One Team working collaboration initiatives and joint working with Licensing 
and those in the nighttime economy.  

Following the report Police and other members of the partnership discussed the 
following:  

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



As Stockton had seen reductions in knife crime had there been any displacement into 
other areas? Which Officers were happy to report was not the case. 

Had any work been done to target primary school children with early prevention work? 
There had been work undertaken to adapt presentations for students for a younger 
audience, this would be linked in with partners in Children’s services.  

Members agreed to note the report. 

 
SSP/2924 Deliberate Fires 

 
Cleveland Fire Brigade Officers gave an update on Deliberate Fires and their 
economic impact to the partnership. An increase of 4% in the number of deliberate 
fires set was highlighted to members, Officers explained that in response a heightened 
targeting of hotspot areas had been undertaken with patrols and instigating seals 
community skips. The recent increase was part of a 58% increase over a five-year 
period, which was being investigated jointly with Police.  

Offices emphasised that they are wanting to work with partners to tackle the increased 
activity. Members of the partnership promised to link in with the Fire Brigade following 
the meeting to discuss how they could work more closely going forward.  

 Members agreed to note the report. 

 
SSP/3024 Post Disorder Report 

 
Members agreed to defer this report to a following meeting due to Officers being 
unable to attend. 
 

SSP/3124 Recorded Crime & Disorder Report 
 
Officers presented the Recorded Crime and Disorder Report for July 2023 to June 
2024 with Members, they noted several sections of the report for members. These 
were as follows: 

• Public reports crime had seen a decrease of 21% 

• A slight increase in the numbers of vehicle crime but work had been undertaken 
and a group believed to be responsible for a large part of the increase had been 
arrested.  

• The number of drug offences had increased in the six months; Officers would 
continue to work with the UK Boarder Force agency as it is believed to be coming from 
abroad.  

• A 56% decrease in the number of off-road bike reports, Officers were confident 
that the decrease was due to the work being carried out by Officers with cooperation 
with the Public.  

Overall levels of crime had been reducing but the public perception of crime was 
higher than ever. Offices noted that it was important to push the good news stories of 
reductions out to the public but would not dismiss the public’s perception as it was 
equally important.  

Page 32



Members agreed to note the report. 

 
SSP/3224 Operation Harmony Update 

 
Members were given an update on Operation Harmony which outlined that there had 
been a significant reduction in crime, Officers contributed this to the partnership work 
being done by all those involved.  

The feedback from the public which shows that the perception of crime hasn’t reduced 
with the actual level of crimes. Offices stated that more work would need to be done to 
reassure those members of the public, which will be an ongoing goal.  

Police were trying to promote the work being done across the area and to make sure 
the Policing being done was more visible in an attempt to combat the communities 
perception.  

Members of the community had made a recommendation to Police that Operation 
Nightfall be continued in the area. This was seen as a possible solution by members 
for the communities perception.  

Community engagement would continue into the future with a residents meeting being 
planned in the week following this Safer Stockton Partnership meeting.  

Members Agreed to note the report. 

 
SSP/3324 Prevent (CT) Update 

 
There were no further updates to bring to members attention for this item. 
 

SSP/3424 Any Other Business 
 
Members shared information about an update on the Bleed Cabinets which were 
discussed at the previous meeting.  

Partners agreed to jointly petition for the Bleed Cabinets to be dealt with under the 
same system that the Defibrillator cabinets.  

Memerbs noted the discussion. 

 
SSP/3524 iQuanta Report 

 
Members were presented with a restricted report that provided an overview on crime 
comparisons against other similar CSPs utilising iQuanta.   

This report was a restricted document due to the statistical information only made 
available as an intelligence tool for partnerships until released by the Home Office.  

AGREED that the report be noted. 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



 

 COMMUNITY SAFETY SELECT COMMITTEE 
Work Programme 2024-2025 

 
 

1 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Date 
(4.30pm 

unless stated) 
Topic Attendance 

25 April Review of Outdoor Play Provision: Quality and 
Distribution, Maintenance, and Physical 
Accessibility 

• (Draft) Final Report 
 

 
 

 
Cllr Clare Gamble / Cllr Steve Nelson 
/ Cllr Norma Stephenson OBE / 
Neil Mitchell 

23 May CANCELLED  

13 June 
 

Monitoring: Action Plan - Outdoor Play Provision 
 
Monitoring: Progress Update – Tree Asset 
Management 
 
 
Review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres 

• (Draft) Scope and Project Plan 

Graham Clingan 
 
Dale Rowbotham 
 
 
 
 
Marc Stephenson 

11 July Review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres 

• SBC Community Safety and Regulated 
Services 

 
Sharon Cooney / Stephen Donaghy / 
Leanne Maloney-Kelly 

26 September  Review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres 

• SBC Town Centres Development 

• SBC Public Health / CGL 
 

 
Iain Robinson / Marc Bould 
Sarah Bowman-Abouna /  
Mandy MacKinnon / Oliver Metcalf 

24 October Review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres 

• Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Cleveland 

• Cleveland Police 
 
Minutes of the Safer Stockton Partnership 
(March, May & July 2024) 

 
Matt Storey 
 
John Wrintmore / Andy Evans 
 

28 November Review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres 

• Cleveland Fire Brigade 

• Town Councils 
o Billingham 
o Ingleby Barwick 
o Thornaby 
o Yarm 

 
Minutes of the Stockton Home Safety Association 
(March & June 2024) 

 
Alan Turner 
 
Cllr Helen Atkinson / Dee Smith 
(written submission) 
Cllr Phil Genery / Cllr Mark Fairbairn 
(written submission) 
 

19 December CANCELLED  

9 January Review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres 

• Business Forums / Groups 
o Norton (TBC) 
o Stockton 

 
 
 
Jason Maxwell 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



 

 COMMUNITY SAFETY SELECT COMMITTEE 
Work Programme 2024-2025 

 
 

2 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Date 
(4.30pm 

unless stated) 
Topic Attendance 

o Yarm (TBC) 

• SBC Adults, Health and Wellbeing 
 
Minutes of the Safer Stockton Partnership 
(October 2024) 

 
Lesley Tart 

23 January Review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres 

• Catalyst / VCSE Sector 

• Other Local Authority Initiatives 

• Ward Councillor Survey Feedback 
 
Domestic Abuse: Duties to Victims 

 
Lucy Owens 
Sharon Cooney 
 
 
Sarah Bowman-Abouna / 
Mandy MacKinnon 

27 February Monitoring: Progress Update – Tree Asset 
Management 

Dale Rowbotham / Mark Nozedar 

27 February 
(informal – 
after formal 
meeting) 

Review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres 

• Summary of Evidence / Draft 
Recommendations 

 
Sharon Cooney 

27 March Review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres 

• (Draft) Final Report 

 
Cllr Norma Stephenson OBE / 
Carolyn Nice / Sharon Cooney 

 
2024-2025 Scrutiny Reviews   

• Welcoming and Safe Town Centres 
 
Monitoring Items (scheduled / to be scheduled) 

• Fly-Grazed Horses (Progress Update) – TBC 

• Tree Asset Management (Progress Update) – Feb 25 

• Outdoor Play Provision (Progress Update) – TBC (mid-2025) 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Other Information Sources / Updates 
 

• Safer Stockton Partnership (SSP): The SSP is the local community safety partnership and works together to 
reduce crime and anti-social behaviour (ASB) – meeting dates, agendas and minutes can be accessed via 
https://moderngov.stockton.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=1144&Year=0.  Every three years, the SSP 
undertake a Crime and Disorder Audit and, following public consultation, produce a Community Safety 
Plan which sets out how agencies within the Partnership intend to achieve targets in crime reduction – the 
latest version is the Stockton-on-Tees Community Safety Strategy 2022-2025.  Government is consulting on 
part two of the Community Safety Partnership (CSP) Review, with Councils giving input into the Local 
Government Association’s (LGA) response – there is appetite amongst Councils for a more fundamental 
look at the partnership duty landscape and how CSPs work with Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs). 

 

Page 36

https://moderngov.stockton.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=1144&Year=0
https://www.stockton.gov.uk/media/3085/Stockton-on-Tees-Community-Safety-Plan/pdf/Stockton-on-Tees_Community_Safety_Strategy_2022-2025_final_accessible.pdf?m=637831923139770000


 

 COMMUNITY SAFETY SELECT COMMITTEE 
Work Programme 2024-2025 

 
 

3 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

• Serious Violence Duty: The Duty (Aug 22) https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/police-crime-
sentencing-and-courts-bill-2021-factsheets/police-crime-sentencing-and-courts-bill-2021-serious-violence-
duty-factsheet and associated guidance (Dec 22): https://www.gov.uk/government/news/efforts-to-
tackle-serious-violence-and-homicide-stepped-up?utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-
notifications-topic&utm_source=66d44b4c-9d22-4f1d-aed7-517818847183&utm_content=immediately.  
The Home Office plan to update the guidance to the Serious Violence Duty (SVD) – the LGA will be giving 
views (Councils have contributed to this). 

 

• Martyn’s Law: (The Terrorism (Protection of Premises) Draft Bill has recently (May 23) been published, 
which will introduce new requirements for those responsible for certain public premises or events to take 
protective security measures to mitigate against terrorist attacks.  Also known as Martyn’s Law, this will 
likely have a number of implications for Councils.  Further details can also be found on the Home Office’s 
Martyn’s Law factsheet.  The LGA has recently (Apr 23) published a case study highlighting how 
Manchester Council has embedded the principles of Martyn’s Law into their licensing process. 

 

• Modern Slavery: New modern slavery risk assessment and due diligence guidance for local authority 
commissioners of adult social care, produced by the University of Nottingham Rights Lab in tandem with 
the LGA, was published in October 2023 - it provides advice on to how to set up effective local systems to 
identify and manage the risks of modern slavery in adult social care.  The LGA has established a modern 
slavery network for council officers leading on work to tackle modern slavery – the network meets 
quarterly via Teams and aims to share good practice and discuss current issues.  In March 2024, the Home 
Office published data on the number of potential victims of modern slavery referred into the National 
Referral Mechanism (NRM) or via the Duty to Notify (DtN) process in 2023.  17,004 potential victims of 
modern slavery were referred to the Home Office in 2023.  The number of referrals for females were at 
their highest on record, as were the number of referrals for child potential victims.  The most common 
nationality referred in 2023 was UK. 

 

• Youth Offending: Turnaround is a voluntary youth early intervention programme led by the Ministry of 
Justice.  The programme provides multi-year grant funding to Youth Offending Teams (YOTs) across 
England and Wales until March 2025, enabling them to intervene earlier and improve outcomes for 
children on the cusp of entering the youth justice system.  The eligibility criteria for Turnaround includes; 
children involved in anti-social behaviour (ASB) – ranging from coming to notice for repeated involvement 
in ASB up to and including receiving a Civil Order for ASB.  The Ministry of Justice is encouraging all 
community safety teams to engage with their local YOT Manager or Management Board to discuss a 
referral pathway for eligible children so they can be offered support via Turnaround. 

 

• Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB): The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman issued a press release in 
August 2023 expressing concern that Councils were not doing enough to help victims of ASB.  The 
Ombudsman has also produced a learning lessons from complaints about antisocial behaviour document 
which includes scrutiny questions for Councillors.  The ASB Action Plan has since been updated (March 
2024). 

 

• CONTEST: In July 2023, the Government published its updated counter-terrorism strategy, CONTEST, which 
judges that risks from terrorism are rising.  In related matters, SBC rolled-out mandatory staff training 
around the Prevent and Protect duty at the end of April 2023.  In March 2024, the Government published a 
new definition of extremism, updating the one in the 2011 Prevent Strategy and to reflect the evolution of 
extremist ideologies and the social harms they create.   The Government also recently published a progress 
report one year on from the publication of the Independent Review of Prevent.  This sets out that 30 of the 

Page 37

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/police-crime-sentencing-and-courts-bill-2021-factsheets/police-crime-sentencing-and-courts-bill-2021-serious-violence-duty-factsheet
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/police-crime-sentencing-and-courts-bill-2021-factsheets/police-crime-sentencing-and-courts-bill-2021-serious-violence-duty-factsheet
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/police-crime-sentencing-and-courts-bill-2021-factsheets/police-crime-sentencing-and-courts-bill-2021-serious-violence-duty-factsheet
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/efforts-to-tackle-serious-violence-and-homicide-stepped-up?utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-notifications-topic&utm_source=66d44b4c-9d22-4f1d-aed7-517818847183&utm_content=immediately
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/efforts-to-tackle-serious-violence-and-homicide-stepped-up?utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-notifications-topic&utm_source=66d44b4c-9d22-4f1d-aed7-517818847183&utm_content=immediately
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/efforts-to-tackle-serious-violence-and-homicide-stepped-up?utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-notifications-topic&utm_source=66d44b4c-9d22-4f1d-aed7-517818847183&utm_content=immediately
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDcsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vd3d3Lmdvdi51ay9nb3Zlcm5tZW50L3B1YmxpY2F0aW9ucy90ZXJyb3Jpc20tcHJvdGVjdGlvbi1vZi1wcmVtaXNlcy1kcmFmdC1iaWxsLW92ZXJhcmNoaW5nLWRvY3VtZW50cyIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA1MjUuNzcyNzg5MTEifQ.9ViFVctZ5etL8Q2awxDNnRtkcn_y6Ayb1N5iPl09vSQ%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F203731088118-l&data=05%7C01%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C84bd9170caa8473311c308db5d37b262%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638206266323897002%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=D3jppVvbDPaj%2BbaTqnw%2F14dRaGsfnxbfoL9eXWGdywc%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDgsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vaG9tZW9mZmljZW1lZGlhLmJsb2cuZ292LnVrLzIwMjIvMTIvMTkvbWFydHlucy1sYXctZmFjdHNoZWV0LyIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA1MjUuNzcyNzg5MTEifQ._sTTmzlPARCPt9c1o7nkz6nm4D8MjBmsw9ep5bJvqmw%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F203731088118-l&data=05%7C01%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C84bd9170caa8473311c308db5d37b262%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638206266323897002%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Y9gHyhGVPb7yL0QDoQPe29qsplU5eEUCWdIpuW%2BEqxA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDgsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vaG9tZW9mZmljZW1lZGlhLmJsb2cuZ292LnVrLzIwMjIvMTIvMTkvbWFydHlucy1sYXctZmFjdHNoZWV0LyIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA1MjUuNzcyNzg5MTEifQ._sTTmzlPARCPt9c1o7nkz6nm4D8MjBmsw9ep5bJvqmw%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F203731088118-l&data=05%7C01%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C84bd9170caa8473311c308db5d37b262%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638206266323897002%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Y9gHyhGVPb7yL0QDoQPe29qsplU5eEUCWdIpuW%2BEqxA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDksInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vd3d3LmxvY2FsLmdvdi51ay9jYXNlLXN0dWRpZXMvbWFuY2hlc3Rlci1jaXR5LWNvdW5jaWwtc2VjdXJpdHktYW5kLWxpY2Vuc2luZyIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA1MjUuNzcyNzg5MTEifQ.rGpEf6CmddSSloSY8ucFernsFkJ-zuRspiH7hYVK4C0%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F203731088118-l&data=05%7C01%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C84bd9170caa8473311c308db5d37b262%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638206266323897002%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=lcoexv9z6UfEHpwZ8Y4AFti%2BvOXXu41hmSNjX4pPDv0%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDksInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vd3d3LmxvY2FsLmdvdi51ay9jYXNlLXN0dWRpZXMvbWFuY2hlc3Rlci1jaXR5LWNvdW5jaWwtc2VjdXJpdHktYW5kLWxpY2Vuc2luZyIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA1MjUuNzcyNzg5MTEifQ.rGpEf6CmddSSloSY8ucFernsFkJ-zuRspiH7hYVK4C0%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F203731088118-l&data=05%7C01%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C84bd9170caa8473311c308db5d37b262%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638206266323897002%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=lcoexv9z6UfEHpwZ8Y4AFti%2BvOXXu41hmSNjX4pPDv0%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDksInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vd3d3Lm5vdHRpbmdoYW0uYWMudWsvUmVzZWFyY2gvQmVhY29ucy1vZi1FeGNlbGxlbmNlL1JpZ2h0cy1MYWIvcmVzb3VyY2VzL3JlcG9ydHMtYW5kLWJyaWVmaW5ncy8yMDIzL09jdG9iZXIvRXN0YWJsaXNoaW5nLW1vZGVybi1zbGF2ZXJ5LXJpc2stYXNzZXNzbWVudC1hbmQtZHVlLWRpbGlnZW5jZS1pbi1hZHVsdC1zb2NpYWwtY2FyZS1BLWNvbW1pc3Npb25pbmctb2ZmaWNlcnMtZ3VpZGUucGRmIiwiYnVsbGV0aW5faWQiOiIyMDIzMTAyNi44NDY0MDk2MSJ9.eLuGoeG5t669J8ryJOW5AuosQ7yt4YcBWORfTJt3eUA%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F228993929971-l&data=05%7C01%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7Cb004be2db6ec4b7ef86208dbd6256717%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638339228528071318%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=mie9OK%2BtH39fdtr4OJDwCQicclyni5a7qN%2FyU2XggdA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDksInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vd3d3Lm5vdHRpbmdoYW0uYWMudWsvUmVzZWFyY2gvQmVhY29ucy1vZi1FeGNlbGxlbmNlL1JpZ2h0cy1MYWIvcmVzb3VyY2VzL3JlcG9ydHMtYW5kLWJyaWVmaW5ncy8yMDIzL09jdG9iZXIvRXN0YWJsaXNoaW5nLW1vZGVybi1zbGF2ZXJ5LXJpc2stYXNzZXNzbWVudC1hbmQtZHVlLWRpbGlnZW5jZS1pbi1hZHVsdC1zb2NpYWwtY2FyZS1BLWNvbW1pc3Npb25pbmctb2ZmaWNlcnMtZ3VpZGUucGRmIiwiYnVsbGV0aW5faWQiOiIyMDIzMTAyNi44NDY0MDk2MSJ9.eLuGoeG5t669J8ryJOW5AuosQ7yt4YcBWORfTJt3eUA%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F228993929971-l&data=05%7C01%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7Cb004be2db6ec4b7ef86208dbd6256717%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638339228528071318%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=mie9OK%2BtH39fdtr4OJDwCQicclyni5a7qN%2FyU2XggdA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDcsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vd3d3Lmdvdi51ay9nb3Zlcm5tZW50L3N0YXRpc3RpY3MvbW9kZXJuLXNsYXZlcnktbnJtLWFuZC1kdG4tc3RhdGlzdGljcy1lbmQtb2YteWVhci1zdW1tYXJ5LTIwMjMvbW9kZXJuLXNsYXZlcnktbmF0aW9uYWwtcmVmZXJyYWwtbWVjaGFuaXNtLWFuZC1kdXR5LXRvLW5vdGlmeS1zdGF0aXN0aWNzLXVrLWVuZC1vZi15ZWFyLXN1bW1hcnktMjAyMyIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyNDAzMjUuOTIzMTY3NTEifQ.aiJyRViPTP9MLwA8eaTIcZqi63rm-PbWuFnlN4y3P24%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F239519275079-l&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C980fe12166ef4b2a1b6a08dc4cd3d2c3%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638469721383676605%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=kS9Tg8GY2iVzy7ES6455Dg%2BkIeOWuS3MpqqocuDGI%2Fc%3D&reserved=0
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news/2023/aug/councils-not-doing-enough-to-help-victims-of-antisocial-behaviour-ombudsman-says
https://www.lgo.org.uk/assets/attach/6465/FINAL.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/anti-social-behaviour-action-plan/anti-social-behaviour-action-plan
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTEsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vYXNzZXRzLnB1Ymxpc2hpbmcuc2VydmljZS5nb3YudWsvZ292ZXJubWVudC91cGxvYWRzL3N5c3RlbS91cGxvYWRzL2F0dGFjaG1lbnRfZGF0YS9maWxlLzExNzEwODQvQ09OVEVTVF8yMDIzLnBkZiIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA3MjYuODAxOTA3MzEifQ.QEBR99niH38WF1aBSYc_guaKL3d8eQEt2AFLXztUMtg%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F223212574269-l&data=05%7C01%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C5e85cd71a5c146236ad808db8dbe882d%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638259621975504055%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=cforNu9k0rymQRagJlV6BgOTIL7gJ54lxhMgiybv9sQ%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTIsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vd3d3Lmdvdi51ay9nb3Zlcm5tZW50L3B1YmxpY2F0aW9ucy9uZXctZGVmaW5pdGlvbi1vZi1leHRyZW1pc20tMjAyNC9uZXctZGVmaW5pdGlvbi1vZi1leHRyZW1pc20tMjAyNCIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyNDAzMjUuOTIzMTY3NTEifQ.oMes8Yms-CZ3NafSVGM7n95Ddjued3uHz7IAaKRgTIQ%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F239519275079-l&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C980fe12166ef4b2a1b6a08dc4cd3d2c3%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638469721383713571%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=KixBC32m34QLhAFEQ2%2BZyxSeKDDiyOkiqWGGDMpfOuE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTIsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vd3d3Lmdvdi51ay9nb3Zlcm5tZW50L3B1YmxpY2F0aW9ucy9uZXctZGVmaW5pdGlvbi1vZi1leHRyZW1pc20tMjAyNC9uZXctZGVmaW5pdGlvbi1vZi1leHRyZW1pc20tMjAyNCIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyNDAzMjUuOTIzMTY3NTEifQ.oMes8Yms-CZ3NafSVGM7n95Ddjued3uHz7IAaKRgTIQ%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F239519275079-l&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C980fe12166ef4b2a1b6a08dc4cd3d2c3%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638469721383713571%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=KixBC32m34QLhAFEQ2%2BZyxSeKDDiyOkiqWGGDMpfOuE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTUsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vYXNzZXRzLnB1Ymxpc2hpbmcuc2VydmljZS5nb3YudWsvbWVkaWEvNjVjZjkzYTVlMWJkZWMwMDFhMzIyMjgxLzE0LjQxOV9IT19JbmRlcGVuZGVudCtSZXZpZXcrb2YrUHJldmVudF92Nl9XZWIxNjAyMjQucGRmIiwiYnVsbGV0aW5faWQiOiIyMDI0MDMyNS45MjMxNjc1MSJ9.K_r1BELILlhOotLtzOSKz0CNk2jzO8UQlZXVjR0ZE1c%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F239519275079-l&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C980fe12166ef4b2a1b6a08dc4cd3d2c3%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638469721383736888%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=3%2BQ%2ByEyGRuRl0ofpsDCnLjlE87UuNd%2FLf9m%2FJAbVb8M%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTUsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vYXNzZXRzLnB1Ymxpc2hpbmcuc2VydmljZS5nb3YudWsvbWVkaWEvNjVjZjkzYTVlMWJkZWMwMDFhMzIyMjgxLzE0LjQxOV9IT19JbmRlcGVuZGVudCtSZXZpZXcrb2YrUHJldmVudF92Nl9XZWIxNjAyMjQucGRmIiwiYnVsbGV0aW5faWQiOiIyMDI0MDMyNS45MjMxNjc1MSJ9.K_r1BELILlhOotLtzOSKz0CNk2jzO8UQlZXVjR0ZE1c%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F239519275079-l&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C980fe12166ef4b2a1b6a08dc4cd3d2c3%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638469721383736888%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=3%2BQ%2ByEyGRuRl0ofpsDCnLjlE87UuNd%2FLf9m%2FJAbVb8M%3D&reserved=0


 

 COMMUNITY SAFETY SELECT COMMITTEE 
Work Programme 2024-2025 

 
 

4 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

34 recommendations are now complete, including updated statutory guidance, training and the 
assessment framework, the launch of a new Standards and Compliance Unit (STaCU) to handle complaints 
and provide oversight. 

 

• Fire & Rescue: State of Fire & Rescue 2022 - His Majesty’s Chief Inspector of Fire and Rescue Services 
Annual Assessment of Fire and Rescue Services in England.  Arson and deliberate fire setting remain a 
significant issue for Cleveland Fire Brigade with Cleveland being the arson capital of the UK – in October 
2022, Cleveland Fire Brigade appealed for everyone to become a FireStopper in a new bid to reduce arson 
and violent attacks on Firefighters. 

 

• Shoplifting: Police to treat shoplifting like organised crime (BBC online article published in October 2023): 
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/business-67191793.  In November 2024, it was reported that incidents of 
shoplifting had reached a 20-year high, according to figures recorded by the police.  A survey of 
shopkeepers by the Association of Convenience Stores found that 94 per cent felt that the problem had 
worsened in the last 12 months: Sky: 'We need help': Workers say shoplifting is 'out of control' after surge 
in brazen thefts. 

 

• Dangerous Dogs Act 1991: The Government has added the XL Bully breed type to the list of dogs banned 
under the Dangerous Dogs Act 1991 in England and Wales.  From 31 December 2023, breeding, selling, 
exchanging, advertising, rehoming, gifting, abandoning, and allowing an XL Bully dog to stray will be illegal, 
and these dogs must be muzzled and on a lead in public.  From 1 February 2024 it will be a criminal offence 
to own an XL Bully in England and Wales unless the owner has a Certificate of Exemption.  Defra has 
published further information about how to prepare for the ban which will be updated regularly, and they 
will continue engagement with stakeholders.  In March 2024, the LGA wrote to Council chief finance 
officers on behalf of DEFRA about new burdens funding relating to the XL Bully Ban for 2023-24. 

 

• Licensing: Legislation has been introduced into Parliament to amend the Licensing Act 2003 so that it is 
easier to get changes to licensing hours for special events or occasions, such as significant sporting events, 
through Parliament. The Bill is more concerned with parliamentary process than the contents of the 
Licensing Act itself. The Local Government Association (LGA) understands this legislation has Government 
support, so is likely to complete its parliamentary stages and become law.  The British Beer & Pub 
Association has produced advice for licensees showing European Championship football matches – this is 
an update of the previous World Cup guidance. 

 

• Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHRs): The LGA and DAC conducted a survey regarding DHRs - the results 
can be found on the LGA website.  The LGA, Association of Police and Crime Commissioners (APCC) and 
Domestic Abuse Commissioner (DAC) have established a forum to share best practice and act as a platform 
for government changes in relation to domestic and related death homicide.  So far there has been one 
meeting and 132 people have volunteered to take part. 

 

• Float to Live campaign: The RNLI’s Float to Live campaign took place on 21 May 2024.  The ‘float to live’ 
message has saved lives, and the RNLI is keen for Councils to support the campaign to raise more 
awareness amongst local communities.  It has produced a free social media toolkit which may be of 
interest to Council communications team. 

 

• Fires involving e-bikes and e-scooters: The Office for Product Safety & Standards (OPSS) has written to 
heads of trading standards, asking that, where resources and prioritisation allow, Trading Standards 
services identify and inspect bike repair businesses and where possible inform OPSS of their findings. 

Page 38

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTYsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vd3d3Lmdvdi51ay9nb3Zlcm5tZW50L25ld3Mvc3RhbmRhcmRzLWFuZC1jb21wbGlhbmNlLXVuaXQtbGF1bmNoZWQtdG8tb3ZlcnNlZS1wcmV2ZW50Izp-OnRleHQ9U3RhQ1UlMjB3aWxsJTIwZnVsZmlsJTIwYSUyMGNydWNpYWwsb2YlMjBjb21wbGFpbnRzJTIwcmVjZWl2ZWQlMjBieSUyMFN0YUNVJTIwLiIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyNDAzMjUuOTIzMTY3NTEifQ.IWBjtAprsvEnpCBycGM4JV_W5WdTGzhMdR_iItPog94%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F239519275079-l&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C980fe12166ef4b2a1b6a08dc4cd3d2c3%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638469721383744087%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=x56zGISRAdJye1%2FotGtxUePaFLZzlJLO92WVK9e8HOg%3D&reserved=0
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/wp-content/uploads/state-of-fire-and-rescue-2022.pdf
https://www.clevelandfire.gov.uk/2022/10/be-a-firestopper-and-help-reduce-arson/
https://www.clevelandfire.gov.uk/2022/10/be-a-firestopper-and-help-reduce-arson/
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/business-67191793
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flinks-1.govdelivery.com%2FCL0%2Fhttps%3A%252F%252Fnews.sky.com%252Fstory%252Fwe-need-help-workers-say-shoplifting-is-out-of-control-as-brazen-thefts-explode-13256656%253Futm_medium%3Demail%2526utm_source%3Dgovdelivery%2F1%2F0100019348cb126f-23bd9d33-9b54-4c9d-b989-a247320c458c-000000%2FeDzue3nbbzmo0OwkEpVjfkUzDnjBVI-T1aR57fGolJ8%3D380&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C6d30a46754194018e91408dd094174fc%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638676898949898456%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=XqQXU8f3J4p1JFcIagoOpQ9YUB6mqW4PkSWw6oAvY5Q%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flinks-1.govdelivery.com%2FCL0%2Fhttps%3A%252F%252Fnews.sky.com%252Fstory%252Fwe-need-help-workers-say-shoplifting-is-out-of-control-as-brazen-thefts-explode-13256656%253Futm_medium%3Demail%2526utm_source%3Dgovdelivery%2F1%2F0100019348cb126f-23bd9d33-9b54-4c9d-b989-a247320c458c-000000%2FeDzue3nbbzmo0OwkEpVjfkUzDnjBVI-T1aR57fGolJ8%3D380&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C6d30a46754194018e91408dd094174fc%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638676898949898456%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=XqQXU8f3J4p1JFcIagoOpQ9YUB6mqW4PkSWw6oAvY5Q%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDksInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vd3d3Lmdvdi51ay9ndWlkYW5jZS9wcmVwYXJlLWZvci10aGUtYmFuLW9uLXhsLWJ1bGx5LWRvZ3MiLCJidWxsZXRpbl9pZCI6IjIwMjMxMTI4Ljg2MjU5MjMxIn0.efIZN95zFqskBuV0aXM1p3Ox381LZRCz04AzuXpMOFU%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F231716060300-l&data=05%7C01%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C1d26e0753e554ef1b1a708dbf029caae%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638367834770863511%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=mMk7K27tpg20p78e8Ui6n37qtKJsqBP5LrlqBjQDKEA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDksInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vd3d3Lmdvdi51ay9ndWlkYW5jZS9wcmVwYXJlLWZvci10aGUtYmFuLW9uLXhsLWJ1bGx5LWRvZ3MiLCJidWxsZXRpbl9pZCI6IjIwMjMxMTI4Ljg2MjU5MjMxIn0.efIZN95zFqskBuV0aXM1p3Ox381LZRCz04AzuXpMOFU%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F231716060300-l&data=05%7C01%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C1d26e0753e554ef1b1a708dbf029caae%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638367834770863511%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=mMk7K27tpg20p78e8Ui6n37qtKJsqBP5LrlqBjQDKEA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDcsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vYmlsbHMucGFybGlhbWVudC51ay9iaWxscy8zNTU3IiwiYnVsbGV0aW5faWQiOiIyMDI0MDEyNC44OTA1MjA0MSJ9.-iqhu9D-D4cnOSWao_Eo8hZ2M51TVCKxjpPhF5KjjPs%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F235883085364-l&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7Cc6fb946c8b984182fb3208dc1cec6b84%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638417048960330472%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=os0lVMyCnXo2eqbHjYt8ccM3Tw%2BaSRp2SoZdAw9UyUU%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTQsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vd3d3Lm5hbGVvLmNvLnVrL3NpdGVzL25hbGVvL2ZpbGVzL0V1cm8tMjAyNC1HdWlkYW5jZS5wZGYiLCJidWxsZXRpbl9pZCI6IjIwMjQwNTIyLjk1MTcwNTAxIn0.pH9z1bWxshoU4bFIVIm1xCvr1AzAzo7fbEeoAqFbjqw%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F242885973231-l&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7Ced56ab8ca5914980f85d08dc7a712f8b%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638519875977403216%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=VR4DToua%2FD%2Fibjg5Z%2ByVXD%2BBKYFDIUJTqMrbQwryaVY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flinks-1.govdelivery.com%2FCL0%2Fhttps%3A%252F%252Fwww.local.gov.uk%252Fpublications%252Fdomestic-homicide-review-survey-2024%2F1%2F01000190ef5511ae-67886b75-d973-4df5-8916-504a79e1e766-000000%2FLjBkNjuR-QCFuAoSpmAY6Qw-6Z4U5wyqvwNdbSVDHZI%3D363&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C49f9e0c144b04f6745d908dcad7ae383%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638575993667821864%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=pAoWgsjNjpwzl1xAoN%2FHT9ECyA9UouZE5hKaIppQOrc%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flinks-1.govdelivery.com%2FCL0%2Fhttps%3A%252F%252Fwww.local.gov.uk%252Fpublications%252Fdomestic-homicide-review-survey-2024%2F1%2F01000190ef5511ae-67886b75-d973-4df5-8916-504a79e1e766-000000%2FLjBkNjuR-QCFuAoSpmAY6Qw-6Z4U5wyqvwNdbSVDHZI%3D363&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C49f9e0c144b04f6745d908dcad7ae383%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638575993667821864%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=pAoWgsjNjpwzl1xAoN%2FHT9ECyA9UouZE5hKaIppQOrc%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDcsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vcm5saS5vcmcvc2FmZXR5L2Zsb2F0IiwiYnVsbGV0aW5faWQiOiIyMDI0MDQyNC45MzgwMDUwMSJ9.cQj6qZ5Vhr1AKHfcrSe86qyKe__WX3QbzRvKPQ1HFz8%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F241257140207-l&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C91f3351c45174f5b7e3e08dc64692c8c%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638495650087295897%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2FcIn01so8QorBpYgamyBEcpreaq0DXP1OrnPviaPeOc%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDgsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vcm5saS5vcmcvc2FmZXR5L2Zsb2F0L2Zsb2F0LXRvLWxpdmUtc3RvcmllcyIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyNDA0MjQuOTM4MDA1MDEifQ.pJTdgk5qZ5wS6wMwv-sU2A-TrNYeNPiV4UF7OukYdY0%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F241257140207-l&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C91f3351c45174f5b7e3e08dc64692c8c%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638495650087301890%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=aajj5WsE3qLRWtvm0FN%2FrEI4pNwmzV%2Bamk9oBogK7I4%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDgsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vcm5saS5vcmcvc2FmZXR5L2Zsb2F0L2Zsb2F0LXRvLWxpdmUtc3RvcmllcyIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyNDA0MjQuOTM4MDA1MDEifQ.pJTdgk5qZ5wS6wMwv-sU2A-TrNYeNPiV4UF7OukYdY0%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F241257140207-l&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C91f3351c45174f5b7e3e08dc64692c8c%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638495650087301890%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=aajj5WsE3qLRWtvm0FN%2FrEI4pNwmzV%2Bamk9oBogK7I4%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDksInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vcm5saS5vcmcvc2FmZXR5L2Zsb2F0L2Zsb2F0LXJlc291cmNlcyIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyNDA0MjQuOTM4MDA1MDEifQ.e3avBmZ8ds4kMTkB5-6GNv3-D4NxfCNzYpCawa8BZxY%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F241257140207-l&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C91f3351c45174f5b7e3e08dc64692c8c%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638495650087307811%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=nQ5IUqSLOXgkpUZqtCcz1gR9Q3h05az6hMEmcifxOv0%3D&reserved=0


 

 COMMUNITY SAFETY SELECT COMMITTEE 
Work Programme 2024-2025 

 
 

5 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

• Khan Review: Dame Sara Khan has published her independent review into social cohesion and resilience.  
Recommendations include the establishment of a new Office for Social Cohesion and Democratic 
Resilience (OSCDR), a 5-year Social Cohesion and Democratic Resilience Strategy (SCDR) and Action Plan, 
and that Government should better engage with Local Authorities over actions that could undermine social 
cohesion – for example in relation to asylum dispersal. 

 
• Taxi Licensing: An HMRC consultation ended on 8 August 2024 on the VAT implications of court 

judgements that proposes abolishing the current licensing system, which differentiates between Taxis and 
PHVs, and moving to a single-tier system.  The LGA will respond. 

 

• Safe Access Zones Around Abortion Clinics: Councils have been contacting the LGA regarding Safe Access 
Zones around abortion clinics. The LGA have been engaging with government to ensure safe access zones 
can be established. Legislation will come into force from 31 October 2024 and will make it illegal for 
anyone to do anything that intentionally or recklessly influences someone’s decision to use abortion 
services, obstructs them, or causes harassment or distress to someone using or working at these premises. 
The law will apply within a 150-metre radius of the abortion service provider. The College of Policing and 
the Crown Prosecution Service will be publishing operational guidance to ensure there is clarity and 
consistency with the enforcement of the new offence. Further information is available at: Protection zones 
around abortion clinics in place by October - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk). 

 
• Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) for Cleveland: Further information on the office of the PCC can be 

found on via https://www.cleveland.pcc.police.uk/commissioner/office/ - this includes engagement with 
the Cleveland Police and Crime Panel (PCP).  Access to PCP agendas and papers can be found via  
https://www.cleveland.pcc.police.uk/commissioner/office/the-work-of-cleveland-police-and-crime-panel/. 

 

Page 39

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDgsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsInVybCI6Imh0dHBzOi8vd3d3Lmdvdi51ay9nb3Zlcm5tZW50L3B1YmxpY2F0aW9ucy90aGUta2hhbi1yZXZpZXctdGhyZWF0cy10by1zb2NpYWwtY29oZXNpb24tYW5kLWRlbW9jcmF0aWMtcmVzaWxpZW5jZS90aGUta2hhbi1yZXZpZXctZXhlY3V0aXZlLXN1bW1hcnkta2V5LWZpbmRpbmdzLWFuZC1yZWNvbW1lbmRhdGlvbnMjcmVjb21tZW5kYXRpb25zIiwiYnVsbGV0aW5faWQiOiIyMDI0MDYyNS45NjcwODMzMSJ9.Id2BC_PGY12_TJEIJ89flw5noogZQhlq2IzjoeUCtzY%2Fs%2F780202957%2Fbr%2F244679847421-l&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C86b19303758942c6122708dc94fa8ef2%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638549052838501037%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=eL0qO3vd%2BcJEg4uGVKoK5z9OdrXfZpKMuIvAC4lZgFw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flinks-1.govdelivery.com%2FCL0%2Fhttps%3A%252F%252Fassets.publishing.service.gov.uk%252Fmedia%252F661e7dd67469198185bd3e51%252FPHVs_ConDoc_-_FINAL.pdf%2F1%2F01000190ef5511ae-67886b75-d973-4df5-8916-504a79e1e766-000000%2F3eISVb54uV8pqxmqcy5YwaHzoyCMcuMP74AqjK5JRX0%3D363&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C49f9e0c144b04f6745d908dcad7ae383%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638575993667811312%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1sgV4dx99ozXk1%2FJVuxrYSYXGjAwX9b6n%2Fs2lfvlCY0%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flinks-1.govdelivery.com%2FCL0%2Fhttps%3A%252F%252Fwww.gov.uk%252Fgovernment%252Fnews%252Fprotection-zones-around-abortion-clinics-in-place-by-october%2F1%2F01000192af99ec5d-23685eda-0234-46d8-aa6b-e92edf4a0526-000000%2F2blg4NfUb9LqFim-_glacK87R3RxVRRby99Qr5SMixI%3D375&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C8862307a7ffb4e133b4808dcf1e1650b%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638651197610956098%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=MRvccCUrZOQCdIcZxK%2BbVR%2FqeD4d4IPUxo2yF6cC8Ck%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flinks-1.govdelivery.com%2FCL0%2Fhttps%3A%252F%252Fwww.gov.uk%252Fgovernment%252Fnews%252Fprotection-zones-around-abortion-clinics-in-place-by-october%2F1%2F01000192af99ec5d-23685eda-0234-46d8-aa6b-e92edf4a0526-000000%2F2blg4NfUb9LqFim-_glacK87R3RxVRRby99Qr5SMixI%3D375&data=05%7C02%7Cgary.woods%40stockton.gov.uk%7C8862307a7ffb4e133b4808dcf1e1650b%7Cc947251d81c44c9b995df3d3b7a048c7%7C0%7C0%7C638651197610956098%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=MRvccCUrZOQCdIcZxK%2BbVR%2FqeD4d4IPUxo2yF6cC8Ck%3D&reserved=0
https://www.cleveland.pcc.police.uk/commissioner/office/
https://www.cleveland.pcc.police.uk/commissioner/office/the-work-of-cleveland-police-and-crime-panel/


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40


	Agenda
	1 Evacuation Procedure
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Scrutiny Review of Welcoming and Safe Town Centres
	Stockton BID - Report (9th Jan 25)
	Yarm Business Forum - Report (9th Jan 25)
	Scope and Project Plan - Welcoming and Safe Town Centres

	6 Safer Stockton Partnership (SSP) - Previous Minutes (October 2024)
	7 Chair's Update and Select Committee Work Programme 2024-2025

